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Summary of Questions and Answers 
RFP #831 – OECE Pilot Innovation Fund 2.0 

Pre-Proposal Conference on January 31, 2019 @ 2:30pm 
Written Questions on or before February 5, 2019 @ 3:00 pm 

 
 
Pre-proposal Conference Human Services Agency Representatives: 
Elizabeth Leone – HSA Sr. Contract Manager  Elizabeth.Leone@sfgov.org 
Carlo Manaois – OECE Budget & Contracts Liaison Carlo.Manaois@sfgov.org 
 
Questions and Answers:  

1. Question:  Is there an average award? Is there a maximum award? 
Answer:  There is no average amount for an award. The available funding consists of $1-
2 million dollars that is to be split among several grantees. 
 

2. Question:  Can an agency submit more than one proposal to address different aspects of 
the RFP? 
Answer:  Yes, you can submit a separate proposal for each area of focus. 
 

3. Question:  Regarding not seeking funding for on-going services, does this include start-
up time and start-up costs?  
Answer:  We are initially looking at grants to be one year. If start-up time is involved 
within that time frame, that will be factored in. Start-up costs cannot be guaranteed after 
the one year.  
 

4. Question:  Are you looking for innovative approaches to expand on current contracts and 
programs?  
Answer:  We are looking for new ideas and innovations that are not already contracted. 
We are not looking to expand on current contracts or programs. Current contractors are 
eligible to apply, but should propose services that are not already included within a broad 
interpretation of their existing contract’s scope of work. A proposal to this RFP should be 
for new, innovative services not already funded by OECE or other funders. 
 

5. Question:  If there were an innovative way to create an outreach component that is 
different from what is currently being done, would this be of interest? 
Answer:  The outreach would have to fall under one of the impact areas outlined in the 
RFP, and would need to be for services beyond those that are in an existing contract/grant 
agreement. For example, if an organization currently receives funding to deliver parent 
education services and that organization currently uses snail mail to reach parents, that 
organization should not apply to this RFP to propose using a new outreach method such 
as social media. The organization should approach its current funder to explore how to 
switch or adjust outreach methods within the current contract. 
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6. Question:  If something was proposed last year and was not funded, can we propose it 
again? 
Answer:  You may, but we do not recommend re-submitting the exact same proposals 
from the previous Innovations procurement. However, you may submit an idea that was 
proposed last year if you have improved upon and/or further honed that idea. 

 
7. Question:  Regarding the universe of 325 educators and providers that are named - Are 

you interested in just these current providers or are you interested in similar organizations 
and providers to expand this universe? 
Answer:  Proposals can address any one or more of the Priority Populations listed on 
page 3 of the RFP, The last priority population listed on that page is the network of 325 
early care and education programs OECE currently works with, but we are exploring 
ways to expand our network to include more ECE programs that are interested in serving 
our priority population families.  
 

8. Question:  On page 5, Item B the first bullet calls out educational development. Is the 
focus on educational attainment from traditional pathways such as community college or 
is it broader and beyond traditional pathways?  
Answer:  The focus is on both traditional and non-traditional education and 
development. We have contracts that focus on the traditional pathways in higher 
education, and we have contracts that support education and development in non-
traditional settings, as well. 
 

9. Question:  Are you interested in proposals that address quality improvement on a 
massive scale or are you interested in smaller improvements? 
Answer:  We are interested in all approaches, particularly those that can be tested at a 
small scale and expanded based on successes.  Please keep in mind the funding available 
for the RFP and that the funding is one-time. 
 

10. Question:  Have the grantees from last year been evaluated? 
Answer:  The grantees are at different stages of implementation and development. OECE 
is partnering with them to learn from their efforts as they progress. OECE plans to 
document successes and challenges. 

 

      11.  Question:  Can you share the projects awarded last year?  
Answer:  For FY17-18 Pilot Innovations procurement, the following proposals were 
awarded: 
 

Agency Name: Submission Name or Description: 

Kai Ming, Inc. Art-based Chinese Bilingual Curriculum 
(Preschool) 

Kai Ming, Inc. ECE Substitute Training and Placement 
Program 

Parents for Public Schools Family Leadership Launch in Early 
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of San Francisco Education 

San Francisco State 
University 

EDvance Innovation Professional 
Development 

SFUSD Shoestrings Program 

Tandem, Partners in Early 
Learning 

Increase Engagement with FCC providers 
and FFN care providers 

 
 

12. Question:  Could proposals address issues that cut across many of the impact areas? 
Answer:  Yes, the proposal could address several impact areas, but the proposers need to 
identify only one impact area that the proposal impacts the most. The proposals will be 
reviewed and evaluated against other proposals within that impact area. There are four 
impact areas, and each one may be reviewed separately with a separate panel. 
 

13. Question:  Because we are identifying specific participants that we want to measure the 
success of whatever innovations we have, are we really just focused on services? 
Answer: Proposals can focus on services or on systems improvements.  
 

14. Question:  Will training be provided on CARBON for the reporting requirements? 
Answer:  Yes. 
 

15. Question:  Will the resulting contracts be cost-reimbursable? 
Answer:  Yes. 
 

16. Question:  Regarding the selection of the selection committee panel, what is the scope of 
the experts? 
Answer:  We will have up to four selection panels and will seek out experts within each 
of the four impact areas. There will be at least three panelist per impact area. 
 

17. Question:  How are conflicts of interest of the selection committee panelist disclosed and 
evaluated? 
Answer:  Each panelist will fill out a disclosure form that will be reviewed by the 
Contracts Department. 
 

18. Question:  Can the required three years of experience serving a similar population be 
anywhere or does it have to be in San Francisco?  
Answer:  It can be serving a similar population outside of San Francisco. 
 

19. Question:  Are you expecting any other closeout reports at the end of the project other 
than what is going through CARBON? 
Answer:  There are program requirements for reporting. We will set it up so that you can 
upload and submit documents through CARBON. 
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20. Question:  Is there a maximum indirect rate? 
Answer:  The maximum indirect rate is 15%. 
 

21. Question:  If there is a need to increase staff capacity, does that have to be a temporary 
employee? 
Answer:  There is no funding beyond the one year. It is up to the organization to 
determine if they will bring on a temporary employee or use current internal staff. 
 

22. Question:  When will you notify the grantees of the awards? 
Answer:  The beginning of April, 2019. 
 

23. Question:  Q: The RFP (II. Scope of Work, A. Priority Participants, #4) refers to: “The 
approximately 325 direct service child care organizations that OECE funds, and the staff 
that work or could work in these organizations.”  That list may be useful in our program 
design process. Can you share the list or a link to it with respondents? 
Answer:  The list is available at: http://sfoece.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/06/ELS-
Qualified-Providers_Website_Combined-v3.pdf 
 


